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their professional obligations to their clients 
and repeated failure by police to comply 
promptly with court decisions; 

(D) condemns the harassment of foreign of-
ficials, journalists, human rights workers, 
and others, including threatening their ex-
pulsion from the country if they continue to 
provide food and water to victims detained 
in prison and in police custody while in the 
hospital; 

(E) commends United States Ambassador 
Christopher Dell and other United States 
Government officials and foreign officials for 
their support to political detainees and vic-
tims of torture and abuse while in police cus-
tody or in medical care centers and encour-
ages them to continue providing such sup-
port; 

(F) calls on the Government of Zimbabwe 
to cease immediately its violent campaign 
against fundamental human rights, to re-
spect the courts and members of the legal 
profession, and to restore the rule of law 
while adhering to the principles embodied in 
an accountable democracy, including free-
dom of association and freedom of expres-
sion; 

(G) calls on the Government of Zimbabwe 
to cease illegitimate interference in travel 
abroad by its citizens, especially for humani-
tarian purposes; and 

(H) calls on the leaders of the Southern Af-
rica Development Community (SADC) and 
the African Union to consult urgently with 
all Zimbabwe stakeholders to intervene with 
the Government of Zimbabwe while applying 
appropriate pressures to resolve the eco-
nomic and political crisis. 

f 

INTERNATIONAL EMERGENCY ECO-
NOMIC POWERS ENHANCEMENT 
ACT 

Mr. SALAZAR. Mr. President, I ask 
unanimous consent that the Senate 
proceed to the immediate consider-
ation of Calendar No. 199, S. 1612. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The 
clerk will report the bill by title. 

The assistant legislative clerk read 
as follows: 

A bill (S. 1612) to amend the penalty provi-
sions in the International Emergency Eco-
nomic Powers Act, and for other purposes. 

There being no objection, the Senate 
proceeded to consider the bill. 

Mr. SALAZAR. Mr. President, I ask 
unanimous consent that the amend-
ment at the desk be considered and 
agreed to, the bill, as amended, be read 
a third time, passed, and the motion to 
reconsider be laid upon the table; that 
any statements relating thereto be 
printed in the RECORD. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without 
objection, it is so ordered. 

The amendment (No. 1947) was agreed 
to, as follows: 

(Purpose: To modify the effective date 
provision) 

Strike subsection (b), and insert the fol-
lowing: 

(b) EFFECTIVE DATE.— 
(1) CIVIL PENALTIES.—Section 206(b) of the 

International Emergency Economic Powers 
Act, as amended by subsection (a), shall 
apply to violations described in section 
206(a) of such Act with respect to which en-
forcement action is pending or commenced 
on or after the date of the enactment of this 
Act. 

(2) CRIMINAL PENALTIES.—Section 206(c) of 
the International Emergency Economic Pow-

ers Act, as amended by subsection (a), shall 
apply to violations described in section 
206(a) of such Act with respect to which en-
forcement action is commenced on or after 
the date of the enactment of this Act. 

The bill (S. 1612), as amended, was or-
dered to be engrossed for a third read-
ing, was read the third time, and 
passed, as follows: 

S. 1612 

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Rep-
resentatives of the United States of America in 
Congress assembled, 
SECTION 1. SHORT TITLE. 

This Act may be cited as the ‘‘Inter-
national Emergency Economic Powers En-
hancement Act’’. 
SEC. 2. INCREASED PENALTIES FOR VIOLATIONS 

OF IEEPA. 
(a) IN GENERAL.—Section 206 of the Inter-

national Emergency Economic Powers Act 
(50 U.S.C. 1705) is amended to read as follows: 
‘‘SEC. 206. PENALTIES. 

‘‘(a) UNLAWFUL ACTS.—It shall be unlawful 
for a person to violate, attempt to violate, 
conspire to violate, or cause a violation of 
any license, order, regulation, or prohibition 
issued under this title. 

‘‘(b) EFFECTIVE DATE.— 
‘‘(1) CIVIL PENALTIES.—Section 206(b) of the 

International Emergency Economic Powers 
Act, as amended by subsection (a), shall 
apply to violations described in section 
206(a) of such Act with respect to which en-
forcement action is pending or commenced 
on or after the date of the enactment of this 
Act. 

‘‘(2) CRIMINAL PENALTIES.—Section 206(c) of 
the International Emergency Economic Pow-
ers Act, as amended by subsection (a), shall 
apply to violations described in section 
206(a) of such Act with respect to which en-
forcement action is commenced on or after 
the date of the enactment of this Act. 

‘‘(c) CRIMINAL PENALTY.—A person who 
willfully commits, willfully attempts to 
commit, or willfully conspires to commit, or 
aids or abets in the commission of, an unlaw-
ful act described in subsection (a) shall, upon 
conviction, be fined not more than $1,000,000, 
or if a natural person, may be imprisoned for 
not more than 20 years, or both.’’. 

(b) EFFECTIVE DATE.—The amendment 
made by subsection (a) applies to violations 
described in section 206 of the International 
Emergency Economic Powers Act (50 U.S.C. 
1705) with respect to which enforcement ac-
tion is pending or commenced on or after the 
date of the enactment of this Act. 

f 

THE CALENDAR 

Mr. SALAZAR. Mr. President, I ask 
unanimous consent that it be in order 
for the Senate to proceed en bloc to the 
consideration of the following calendar 
items: Calendar No. 214, S. Res. 225; 
Calendar No. 215, S. Res. 230; and Cal-
endar No. 216, S. Res. 235. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without 
objection, it is so ordered. 

Mr. SALAZAR. I ask unanimous con-
sent that the resolutions be agreed to 
en bloc, the preambles agreed to en 
bloc, the motions to reconsider be laid 
upon the table en bloc, the consider-
ation of these items appear separately 
in the RECORD, and any statements re-
lated thereto be printed in the RECORD. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without 
objection, it is so ordered. 

NATIONAL MEDICINE ABUSE 
AWARENESS MONTH 

The resolution (S. Res. 225) desig-
nating the month of August 2007 as 
‘‘National Medicine Abuse Awareness 
Month,’’ was agreed to. The preamble 
was agreed to. The resolution, with its 
preamble, reads as follows: 

S. RES. 225 
Whereas over-the-counter and prescription 

medicines are extremely safe, effective, and 
potentially lifesaving when used properly, 
but the abuse and recreational use of these 
medicines can be extremely dangerous and 
produce serious side effects; 

Whereas 6,400,000 individuals who are age 
12 or older reported using prescription medi-
cines non-medically in a recently sampled 
month, and abuse of prescription medica-
tions such as pain relievers, tranquilizers, 
stimulants, and sedatives is second only to 
marijuana, the number 1 illegal drug of 
abuse in the United States; 

Whereas, recent studies indicate that 1 in 
10 youth ages 12 through 17, or 2,400,000 chil-
dren, has intentionally abused cough medi-
cine to get high from its dextromethorphan 
ingredient, and 1 in 5 young adults (4,500,000) 
has used prescription medicines non-medi-
cally; 

Whereas, according to research from the 
Partnership for a Drug-Free America, more 
than 1⁄3 of teens mistakenly believe that tak-
ing prescription drugs, even if not prescribed 
by a doctor, is much safer than using street 
drugs; 

Whereas teens’ and parents’ lack of under-
standing of the potential harms of these 
powerful medicines makes it more critical 
than ever to raise public awareness about 
the dangers of their misuse; 

Whereas, when prescription drugs are mis-
used, they are most often obtained through 
friends and relatives, but are also obtained 
through rogue Internet pharmacies; 

Whereas parents should be aware that the 
Internet gives teens access to websites that 
promote medicine misuse; 

Whereas National Medicine Abuse Aware-
ness Month promotes the message that over- 
the-counter and prescription medicines are 
to be taken only as labeled or prescribed, and 
when used recreationally or in large doses 
can have serious and life-threatening con-
sequences; 

Whereas National Medicine Abuse Aware-
ness Month will encourage parents to edu-
cate themselves about this problem and talk 
to their teens about all types of substance 
abuse; 

Whereas observance of National Medicine 
Abuse Awareness Month should be encour-
aged at the national, State, and local levels 
to increase awareness of the rising misuse of 
medicines; 

Whereas some groups, such as the Con-
sumer Healthcare Products Association and 
the Community Anti-Drug Coalition of 
America, have taken important proactive 
steps like creating educational toolkits, 
such as ‘‘A Dose of Prevention: Stopping 
Cough Medicine Abuse Before it Starts’’, 
which includes guides to educate parents, 
teachers, law enforcement officials, doctors 
and healthcare professionals, and retailers 
about the potential harms of cough and cold 
medicines and over-the-counter drug abuse; 

Whereas the nonprofit Partnership for a 
Drug-Free America and its community alli-
ance and affiliate partners have undertaken 
a nationwide prevention campaign utilizing 
research-based educational advertisements, 
public relations and news media, and the 
Internet to inform parents about the nega-
tive teen behavior of intentional abuse of 
medicines so that parents are empowered to 
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effectively communicate the facts of this 
dangerous trend with their teens and to take 
necessary steps to safeguard prescription and 
over-the-counter medicines in their homes; 
and 

Whereas educating the public on the dan-
gers of medicine abuse and promoting pre-
vention is a critical component of what must 
be a multi-pronged effort to curb this dis-
turbing rise in over-the-counter and cough 
medicine misuse: Now, therefore, be it 

Resolved, That the Senate— 
(1) designates the month of August 2007 as 

‘‘National Medicine Abuse Awareness 
Month’’; and 

(2) urges communities to carry out appro-
priate programs and activities to educate 
parents and youth of the potential dangers 
associated with medicine abuse. 

f 

NATIONAL TEEN SAFE DRIVER 
MONTH 

The resolution (S. Res. 230) desig-
nating the month of July 2007 as ‘‘Na-
tional Teen Safe Driver Month,’’ was 
agreed to. The preamble was agreed to. 
The resolution, with its preamble, 
reads as follows: 

S. RES. 230 

Whereas automobile accidents involving 
teenage drivers result in the highest cause of 
death and injury for adolescents between the 
ages of 15 and 20 years; 

Whereas, each year, 7,460 teenage drivers 
between the ages of 15 and 20 years are in-
volved in fatal crashes, and 1,700,000 teenage 
drivers are involved in accidents that are re-
ported to law enforcement officers; 

Whereas driver education and training re-
sources have diminished in communities 
throughout the United States, leaving fami-
lies underserved and lacking in opportunities 
for educating the teenage drivers of those 
families; 

Whereas, in addition to costs relating to 
the long-term care of teenage drivers se-
verely injured in automobile accidents, auto-
mobile accidents involving teenage drivers 
cost the United States more than 
$40,000,000,000 in lost productivity and other 
forms of economic loss; 

Whereas technology advances have in-
creased the opportunity of the United States 
to provide more effective training and re-
search to novice teenage drivers; and 

Whereas the families of victims of acci-
dents involving teenage drivers are working 
together to save the lives of other teenage 
drivers through volunteer efforts in local 
communities: Now, therefore, be it 

Resolved, That the Senate— 
(1) designates the month of July 2007 as 

‘‘National Teen Safe Driver Month’’; and 
(2) calls upon the members of Federal, 

State, and local governments and interested 
organizations— 

(A) to commemorate National Teen Safe 
Driver Month with appropriate ceremonies, 
activities, and programs; and 

(B) to encourage the development of re-
sources to provide affordable, accessible, and 
effective driver training for every teenage 
driver of the United States. 

f 

NATIONAL BOATING DAY 
The resolution (S. Res. 235) desig-

nating July 1, 2007, as ‘‘National Boat-
ing Day,’’ was agreed to. The preamble 
was agreed to. The resolution, with its 
preamble, reads as follows: 

S. RES. 235 

Whereas the United States boating popu-
lation exceeds 73,000,000 individuals utilizing 

and enjoying nearly 18,000,000 recreational 
watercraft; 

Whereas the recreational boating industry 
provides more than $39,000,000,000 in sales 
and services to the United States economy 
and provides nearly 380,000 manufacturing 
jobs; 

Whereas there are approximately 1,400 ac-
tive boat builders in the United States with 
parts and materials being contributed from 
all fifty States; 

Whereas boating appeals to all age groups 
and is a haven for relaxation that includes 
sailing, diving, fishing, water skiing, tubing, 
sightseeing, swimming, and more; 

Whereas boaters serve as monitors and 
stewards of the environment, educating fu-
ture generations in the value of this coun-
try’s abundant water and other natural re-
sources; and 

Whereas Congress passed the Federal Boat 
Safety Act of 1971 and later created the 
Aquatic Resources Trust Fund in 1984, both 
of these actions having resulted in a decline 
in the rate of boating injuries: Now, there-
fore, be it 

Resolved, That the Senate— 
(1) designates July 1, 2007, as ‘‘National 

Boating Day’’; 
(2) recognizes the value of recreational 

boating and commemorates the boating in-
dustry of the United States for its environ-
mental stewardship and innumerable con-
tributions to the economy and to the mental 
and physical health of those who enjoy 
boats; and 

(3) urges citizens, policy makers, and elect-
ed officials to celebrate National Boating 
Day and to become more aware of the overall 
contributions of boating to the lives of the 
people of the United States and to the Na-
tion. 

f 

NATIONAL APHASIA AWARENESS 
MONTH 

Mr. SALAZAR. Mr. President, I ask 
unanimous consent that the Senate 
now proceed to the immediate consid-
eration of S. Res. 256 submitted earlier 
today. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The 
clerk will report the resolution by 
title. 

The assistant legislative clerk read 
as follows: 

A resolution (S. Res. 256) designating June 
2007 as ‘‘National Aphasia Awareness 
Month’’, and supporting efforts to increase 
awareness of aphasia. 

There being no objection, the Senate 
proceeded to consider the resolution. 

Mr. SALAZAR. I ask unanimous con-
sent that the resolution be agreed to, 
the preamble be agreed to, the motion 
to reconsider be laid upon the table, 
and that any statements relating 
thereto be printed in the RECORD. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without 
objection, it is so ordered. 

The resolution (S. Res. 256) was 
agreed to. 

The preamble was agreed to. 
The resolution, with its preamble, 

reads as follows: 
S. RES. 256 

Whereas aphasia is a communication im-
pairment caused by brain damage, typically 
resulting from a stroke; 

Whereas, while aphasia is most often the 
result of stroke or brain injury, it can also 
occur with other neurological disorders, such 
as in the case of a brain tumor; 

Whereas many people with aphasia also 
have weakness or paralysis in their right leg 
and right arm, usually due to damage to the 
left hemisphere of the brain, which controls 
language and movement on the right side of 
the body; 

Whereas the effects of aphasia may include 
a loss or reduction in ability to speak, com-
prehend, read, and write, while intelligence 
remains intact; 

Whereas stroke is the 3rd leading cause of 
death in the United States, ranking behind 
heart disease and cancer; 

Whereas stroke is a leading cause of seri-
ous, long-term disability in the United 
States; 

Whereas there are about 5,000,000 stroke 
survivors in the United States; 

Whereas it is estimated that there are 
about 750,000 strokes per year in the United 
States, with approximately 1⁄3 of these re-
sulting in aphasia; 

Whereas aphasia affects at least 1,000,000 
people in the United States; 

Whereas more than 200,000 Americans ac-
quire the disorder each year; 

Whereas the National Aphasia Association 
is unique and provides communication strat-
egies, support, and education for people with 
aphasia and their caregivers throughout the 
United States; 

Whereas as an advocacy organization for 
people with aphasia and their caregivers, the 
National Aphasia Association envisions a 
world that recognizes this ‘‘silent’’ disability 
and provides opportunity and fulfillment for 
those affected by aphasia; and 

Whereas National Aphasia Awareness 
Month is commemorated in June 2007: Now, 
therefore, be it 

Resolved, That the Senate— 
(1) supports the goals and ideals of, and en-

courages all Americans to observe, National 
Aphasia Awareness Month in June 2007; 

(2) recognizes that strokes, a primary 
cause of aphasia, are the third largest cause 
of death and disability in the United States; 

(3) acknowledges that aphasia deserves 
more attention and study in order to find 
new solutions for serving individuals experi-
encing aphasia and their caregivers; and 

(4) must make the voices of those with 
aphasia heard because they are often unable 
to communicate their condition to others. 

f 

CONGRATULATING THE UNIVER-
SITY OF CALIFORNIA AT LOS 
ANGELES 
Mr. SALAZAR. Mr. President, I ask 

unanimous consent that the Senate 
proceed to the immediate consider-
ation of S. Res. 257, submitted earlier 
today. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The 
clerk will report the resolution by 
title. 

The assistant legislative clerk read 
as follows: 

A resolution (S. Res. 257) congratulating 
the University of California at Los Angeles 
for becoming the first university to win 100 
National Collegiate Athletic Association Di-
vision I team titles. 

There being no objection, the Senate 
proceeded to consider the resolution. 

Mr. SALAZAR. Mr. President, I ask 
unanimous consent that the resolution 
be agreed to, the preamble be agreed 
to, the motions to reconsider be laid 
upon the table, and that any state-
ments relating thereto be printed in 
the RECORD. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Is there 
objection? 
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